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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021, in accordance with Section 653(1) of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, which discloses
the state of affairs of DIB Bank Kenya Limited (the “Bank™).

1. Incorporation

The Bank is incorporated in the Republic of Kenya under the Kenvan Companies Act, 2015, The Bank
received its Banking Licence from the Central Bank of Kenya on 13 April 2017,

2, Activities

The principal activity of the Bank, which is licensed under the Banking Act, is the provision of banking,
financial and related services.

3. Bank results
The following 1s the summary of the results for the year ended 31 December 2020:

2021 | 2020
KShs 000 KShs 600
Loss before tax (681,119) (692,714)
Income tax credit 186,890 190,749
Loss after tax 494 229 {501,965}

4, Business review
External environment

The year 2021 saw the banking sector navigate the effects of the continued Covid-19 Pandemic. Amidst
the protracted pandemic environment, and the consequent uncertainty, the secior players adopted a
cautious approach and continuted to review and enhance their business models seeking to leverage on
frameworks that promise efficiency, including innovations. Cognizant of the growing competition in
the market, increasing sophistication of customer expectations, as well as the dynamism in the
regulatory environment, the overarching challenge to the industry is to continue investing resources so
as 10 remain at the frontier of both regulatory and customer expectations.

The Bank’s performance

The Bank reported a loss before tax of KShs 681 million (2020 — KShs 693 million) representing a 2%
decline from prior year. Income from financing and investing activities grew by 50.7% to KShs 1,083
milhon from KShs 718 million in 2020.

Financing assets grew by 11% to KShs 9.7 billion from KShs 8.7 billion with customer deposits
growing by 18% to KShs 11.9 billion from KShs 10.1 billion.
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BIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

4, Business review (continued)

The Bank’s performance - continued

Looking ahead

The outlook of the bank appears pesitive underpinned by adequate capitalization and liqudity levels, a
robust approach to treatment of asset quality deterioration and, continued implementation of efficient
and resilient business models. In its 2022-2024 Business Plan, the Bank will leverage on the uptick in
the economy to grow its business through an expanded customer base, while enhancing its competitive

positioning, preserving assef quality and continued management of costs for business sustainability.

The Bank has a robust capital plan that ensures sufficient levels of capital are available to support
business growth while remaining compliant with regulatory ratios set by the Central Bank of Kenya.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Bank include, credit risk, quidity risk, market risk,
operaticnal risk and settlement risk. The Bank has mitigation plans and strategies for these risks as
detailed in Note 5 of these financial statements.

5. Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020 — KShs Nil).

6. Directors

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year and up {o-the date of this report are
shown on page 1.

7. Statement of disclosure to the Bank's aunditor

The Directors in office af the date of this report confirm that;

— there is no relevant andit information of which the Bank's auditor is unaware; and

— each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to be aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that -the Bank's auditor is aware of that
mnformation.

8. Audiior

The Bank’s anditor, KPMG Kenya, has expressed willingness to continue in office in accordance with
section 719 of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 and subject to Section 24(1) of the Banking Act {Cap
488).




DIB BANIK KENYA LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

9. Emplovees

The Directors are pieased to record their appreciation of the efforts of all the employees of the Bank.
The average of number of employees in the year is disclosed in Note 9(a).

10. Avpproval of the financial statements

The financial statements set out on page 13 to 78 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on . .. Wheehs | 2o 2

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Baunk Secretaty

Date: 4 MMeaxvde Q020
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank’s board of Directors is responsible for the governanice of the Bank and is accountable so the
shareholders for ensuring that the Bank complies with the law, the highest standards of corporate
governance and business ethics. The Directors attach great importance to the need to conduct the business
and operation of the bank with integrity and in accordance with generally accepted corporate practice and
endorse the internationally developed principles of good corporate governance.

Beard of Directors

The full board meets at least four times a year. The Directors are given appropriate and timely information
so that they can maintain full and effective control over strategic, {inancial, operational and compliance
1ssues. At least a third of the Directors are independent and non-executive

Except for direction and guidance on general policy, the board has delegated authority for conduct of day-
to-day business to the Chief Executive Officer. The board nonetheless refains responsibility for establishing
and maintaining the Bank’s overall infernal control over financial, operational and compliance issues.
Details of attendance for each member of board are as below.

Directors No. of meetings attended 2021
Dr Adnan Chilwan (Chairman)
Dir Steve Mainda

Mr Michael Murphy

Ms. Alison Blignauit*

Mr Mohamed Al Sharif

Mr Peter Makan

N BN Lh 2N

*Ms. Alison Blignault appointed as a Director of the Bank on 18 August 2021,
Board performance evaluation

Under the Prudential guidelines issned by the Central Bank of Kenya, the Board of Directors is responsible
for ensaring that a rigorous evaluation is carried out of its performance, its committees and individual
Directors. This evaluation is conducted annually, and the results are provided to the Central Bank of Kenya.

In the financial year ended 2021, the Board underiook a formal evafuation of it performance and that of its
committees and individual Directors. This performance evaluation is an annual exercise aimed at ensuring
that the Board remains efficient and effective while discharging its responsibilities. Overall, the results for
the evaluation were positive and indicated that the Board and committees were effective and that no major
changes were required.

Directors’ remuneration
One executive Director is paid a monthly salary and is eligible for pension scheme membership. Two other

non-executive Directors are paid & monthly fee and sitting allowances for Board meetings and Board sub-
committee meetings. Directors emoluments are shown in Note 27.




DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERWANCE (CONTINUED)

Committees of the Board
Audif connmitiee

The board has constituted an audit commiitee that meets as required. Hs responsibilifies nciude review of
financial information, budgets, development plans, compliance with accounting standards in financial
reporting, and hiaison with the external auditors, remuneration of external anditors and overseeing internal
control systems. Internal and external auditors and other executives attend audit committee meetings as
required.

Credit committee
The board has constituted a credit committee that meets as required. s responsibilities inctude a review of
the overall credit policy of the Bank, ensuning that there are effective policies and procedures to effectively

manage credit risk, monitor and review all matters, which may materially mmpaci the present and future
quality of the institution’s credit risk management. '

Risk management committee

The board has constituted a Risk Management Comznittee that meets as required. Its respongibilities include
carrying out risk assessment and putting in place risk indicators and monitoring the risk.

Board nominations and remuneration commiitee

The board has constituted Nominations and Renmuneration Committee. The committee deals with all aspects
of appointment of an institution’s Directors, review the mix of skills and experience and other qualities in
order to assess the cffectiveness of the board. The committee is also responsible for overseeing the
compensation system in place on behalf of the Board of Directors.

Statement on risk management

The Bank recognises the responsibility to manage risks related to its business as a financial institution. The
Bank has bailt strong internal systems to ensure that sound banking practices results in income streams that
are commensurate with the risks taken.

The Integrated Risk Management Policy of the Bank s fully committed to adopting best practices in
identifying, measuring, controlling and moniforing the risks faced.

Corporate governance staiement on conflict of interest
The board of Directors has approved a code of conduct that gives disclosure guidance on potential conflicts

of inferest sitnations, Reporting procedures are in place for this. The code of conduct has to be signed
annually by all staff members.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Corporate governance statement on conflict of interest (Continued)

The Bank aims at:

- Integrating risk management into the culture of the organization.

- Eliminating or reducing risk to the lowest acceptable levels.

— Developing risk sensitivity as a core competency of all stakeholders.

— Contimmally identifying potential risks and pro-actively mitigating them.
— Focusing on key risks and controlling them cost-effectively.

The Bank has developed a risk infrastiucture that is appropriate to the size and volatility of the business.
Decision making at all levels are inspired by the aspiration to be a risk intelligent organization. Risk
management is used as an enabler to exploit the potential for increased business by taking informed risks
with awareness and control.

Compliance

The Bank operates within the requirements of the Banking Act, among other Acts, and adopts certain
universally accepted principles in the areas of human rights, labour standards and epviromment in ifs
commitment to best practice. Additionally, the Bank prepares its financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (JFRS) and in the manner required by Kenyan Companies Act,

2015.

Peter Makan Michael Murphy
Director Director

Date: &4 Whaxda QAsaa

PagerS




DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of DIB
Bank Kenya Limmted sef out on pages 13 to 78 which comprise the statement of firancial position at 31
December 2021 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the nofes to the financial statements,
which include 2 summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Directors’ responsibilities include: determining that the basis of accounting and significant accounting
policies described in Note 2 is an acceptable basis for preparing and fairly presenting the financial
statements in the circumstances, preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Kenyan Companies Act,
2015 and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary ta enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Under the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, the Directors are required to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at the end of the
financial year and of the profit or loss of the Bank for that year. It also requires the Directors o ensure that
the Bank keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position
and profit or loss of the Bank.

The Directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prodent judgements and estimates, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Kenyan
Companies Act, 2015. The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the financial position of the Bank and of its profit or Joss and cash flows.

The Directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records which may be relied
upon 1n the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

The Directors have made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and have no
reason to believe that the Bank will not be a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date
of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements set out on pages 13 to 78 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on . \.. Westthn 2023

Peter Makau Michael Murphy
Director Director

Date: c‘ Wonch. AT
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KPMIG Renya Telephone +254 20 2806000

Certifted Public Accountants Fax +254 20 2215695
8th Foar, ABC Towers Email info@kpmy.co.ke
Waiyaki Way Website  www.kpmg.com/eastafrica

PO Box 40612 00100 GPO
Nairobi, Kenvya

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF DIB BANK KENY A LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of DIB Bank Kenya Limited (the “Bank™) set out on pages 13 to
78, which comprise the statement of financial position as af 31 December 2021, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at
3{ December 2021 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Kenyan Comparnies Act, 2015.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the duditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the
International Bthics Standards Board for Accountants’ Infernational Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Kenya and, we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriaie to provide a basis for our opinion.

COther information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information compiise information
included in the DIB Bank Kenya Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements at 31 December 2021,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon, other than that prescribed by the Kenya Companies Act, 2015, as set

out below.,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information ts materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
10 THE MEMBERS OF DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

(CONTINUED)

Report on the audit of the finanecial statements {Continued)
Responsibilities of the Direciors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Fimancial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Kenyan
Companies Act, 2015 and for such internal controls as Directors determine are necessary fo enable the
preparation of financial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's abilify o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Aunditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are (o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstaiement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
18 sufficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atlention in our auditor's report o
the related disciosures in the financial staternents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. .
However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank fo cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and confent of the financial statements, including the
disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a :
manner that achieves fair presentation,

Page 11
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (Continued)
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial siatements (confinued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report en other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 we report to you, based on our audit, that in our opinion,
the information given in the report of the Directors on pages 3 to 5 is consistent with the financial

statements,

The engagement Partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Jacob
Garthecha — Practicing certificate No. 1610.

For and on behalf of:

KPMG Kenya

Certified Public Accountants
PO Box 40612 - 00100
Nairobi

pate: | R Wocthe 2are .
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DiB BANK KENYA LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND QTHER COMPREBENSIVE INCOME

FORTHYE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021
Note KShs 009
Income from financing and investing activities 6 1,082,842
Depositors share of profits 7 {_683.707)
Net income 399,135
Fees and commission income 8(a) 95,248
{Other expenses)/income , 8(b) {(___95.103)
Operating income 485,280
Personnel expenses N a) { 431,758)
Other operating expenses b) { 339,050)
Depreciation of property and eguipment 16 { 63,294)
Depreciation of right of use asset 17(a) { 73,230)
Amortization of intangible assets 18 { 72,268)
Interest on lease liabilities 17(b) { 28.870)
Operating loss { 523,190)
Impairment provision on financing airangements 14(a) ((157.929)
Loss before tax ' ( 681,119)
Income tax credit 10(a) 186.890
Loss for the year ((494.229)
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 4942

The notes set out on pages 17 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2420
KShs'000

718,361
(503.,289)

215,072

122,308
166

337,546
(429,762)
(317,381)
( 75,902)
( 88,063)
( 69,318)
(_14.929)
(657,809)
(_34.905)
(692,714)

190,749

(501.965)

501,865
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DIB B N IT

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2421

2821 2020

[Mote W Shs 000 KShsga0
ASSETH
Cash and balances with Ceniral Bank of Kenya T 1,531,751 1,104,666
Deposits and balances due from banking institutions 12 2,091,210 1,518,722
Financing arrangements 13 B713,541 8,746,618
Other assets 13 122,453 138,871
Property and equipment 16 89,405 140,324
Right-of-use asset 17(a) 261,681 64,223
Intangible assets 18 341,499 366,209
Deferred taxation asset 19 1.370.601 1.183.711
TOTAL ASSETS 15,522,711 13,263,344
LIABILITIES
Cusiomer deposits 20 11,925,689 10,149,323
Lease habibties 21 282,341 65,903
Other liabilities 22 151,328 201,368
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,359,358 18,416,587
SHARFHOLDERS® FUNDS
Share capital 23{a) 6,650,439 5,839,614
Retained carnings ( 3,487,086) ( 3,035,939
Sutugory credit vigk reserve 23(b) - 43.082
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS 3,163,353 2,846,757
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 15,522,711 13,263,344

The financial statements on pages 13 fo 78 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on C{ WAoo ‘A& Y and were signed on its behalf by:

)

e

Michae! Muephy Mobamed ANIbart  ——
Director Director

Peter Makau Njeri Waitimu

Chief Executive Officer Bank Secretary

The notes set out on pages 17 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Page 14




DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021
At 1 Jamuary 2021

Total comprehensive income
FLoss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Transfer from statutory reserve

Transactior with equity holders of the
Bank
Issue of shares (Note 23(a)

At 31 December 2021

2026:
At T January 2020

Total comprehensive income
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Transfer to statuiory reserve

Transaction with equity holders of the
Bank
Issue of shares (Note 23(a)

At 31 December 2020

Statutory

Share eredit risk Retained

Earnings
capital reserve deficit Total
KShs 060 KShs‘000 KShs000 KShs‘000
5,839,614 43,082 (3,035,939) 2,846,757
- - ( 494229 { 494,229)
- (43,082) 43,082 -
810,825 - - 810,825
6,650,439 - (3,487,086) 3,163,353

Statutory

Share credit risk Retained

Earnings
capital reserve deficit Total
KShs 000 KS8hs 000 KShs 060 KShs*000
4,499,869 13,671 (2,504,563) 2,008,977
- - 501,963y ( 501,963)
- 20411 29411) -
1,339,745 - - 1,339,745
5,839,614 43,082 (3,035,939 2,846,757

The statutory reserve represents an appropriation from retained earnings in compliance with Central Bank
of Kenya prudential guidelines on impairment of financing arrangements. Tt represents the excess of
financing arrangemenis provisions as computed as per the Central Bank of Kenya prudential guidelines
over impairment of financing arrangements and receivables computed as per IFRS 9. The statutory reserve
ts not distributable. Retained earnings relate to the cumulative earnings from operations and is distributable.

The notes set out on pages 17 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITHED

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash used in operations 7
Payment of inferest on lease habilities

MNet cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of equipment

Proceeds from disposal of equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash fiows from financing activities

Issue of share capital
Lease liabilities principal payments

Net cash generated from investing activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equtvalents at 1 January

Cagsh and cash eguivalents at 31 December

The notes set out on pages 17 to 78 form an integral part of these financial statements.

20621

Mote KShs 000

24(a) 424,597
17(c) (_28.870)

395,727

16 ( 23,048)
1,200
18 (_47.558)

{___69.406)

23(a) 810,825
17(c) (_54,250)

756,575
1,082,896
2,244,312

24(b) 3,327,208

2020
KShs* 090

( 713,239)
(__14.929)

(_728.168)

( 18,752)
(__33.208)

(__51.968)

1,339,745
(__89.711)

1,250,034
469,906
1.774.406

2.244 312
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

REPORTING ENTITY AND DEFINATIONS OF BANEK S PRODUCTS

DIB Bank Kenya Limiied is a limited company domiciled in Kenya, registered under the Kenyan
Companies Act, 2015 and was incorporated on 15 August 2014. The Bank's registered office is as
shown on page 1.

The following terms are used in the financial statements with the meaning specified:

(2)

(b}

(e}

(d)

(e)

®

Murabaha

An Islamic financing fransaction which represents an agreement whereby the Bank buys a
commodity/good and sells it to a counterparty based on a promise received from that
counterparty to buy the commodity according to specific terms and conditions. The selling
price comprises of the cost of the commodity/goods and a pre-agreed profit margin.

Ijarah

An Islamic financing transaction whereby the Bank purchases an asset for lease according to
the customer’s request (lessee) based on his promise to lease the asset for a specific period
and against certain rent instalments. [jarah could end by transferring the ownership of the
asget to the lessee,

Mudaraba

An Tslamic investing fransaction between the Bank and another party (Rab ul Mal} whereby .
the latter would provide a certain amount of funds, which the Bank (Mudarib) would then

invest in a specific enterprise or activity against a specific share in the profit. The Mudarib

would bear the loss in case of negligence or violation of any of the terms and conditions of
the Mudaraba.

Customer deposits

Deposits are generated on two modes; Qard and Mudaraba. Deposits taken on the basis of
Qard are classified as current accounts while deposits generated on Mudaraba basis are
classified as savings and tme deposit accounts. Time deposits are based on Wakala
Murabaha where the customer as investor deposits his funds to the bank and the bank invests
the funds for a given rate based on the investment plan, No profit or loss ts passed to current
account depositors. Profit realised in investment pools is distributed among depositors in pre-
agreed profit sharing ratio. Rab ul Maal share is distributed among depositors according to
weightages assigned at the inception of the profit calculation period.

Income paid to depositors

Profit sharing accounts are based on the principie of Mudaraba whereby the Bank and the
customer share any profit earned on the customer deposits on a pre-agreed profit sharing
ratio. The customer’s share of profit is paid in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the account. The profit calculation is undertaken at the end of each calendar month.

Commodity Murabaha
An Islamic financing arrangement in which a cusiomer purchases a commeodity/good from

the bank on deferred payment plan, then sells the commodity immediately to obtain liquidity.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFR.Ss) and in a manner required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015.

For Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 reporting purposes, the balance sheet is represented by the
statement of financial position and the profit and loss account is represenied by the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis of accounting. Details
of significant accounting policies are indicated in Notie 3.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya shillings (KShs), which is the Bank’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise
indicated.

Going concern

Bank’s financial performance

The Bank incurred a loss before tax of KShs 681,119,000 during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020 — KShs 692,714,000) and as at that date it had retained earnings deficit of K.Shs
3,487,086,000 (2020 — KShs 3,035,939,000 deficit).

The Bank operated for 4 years and 7 months as at 31 December 2021 and during this time, it
has distinguished iiself through delivery of value to its clients has developed tailor made
products such as premitm and clife accounts that will meet and exceed customer
expectations. The Bank is also offering its clients competitive lending rates in foreign
currency and flexible repayment period in bid te grow its business. These strategies are
expected to translate into increased revenue from growth and a higher market share as well
as operational synergies that will result in improved profitability for the Bank.

The Bank’s management forecasts that these sirategies will begin to bear fruit and achieve
profitability in the near future. The parent Bank, Dubai Islamic Bank PISC is fully aware of
its responsibilities on capital adequacy requirements and undertakes to maintain the
puinimum required capital in DIB Bank Kenya Limited under the Banking Act or as amended
from time to time.

The Directors have made an assessment of the Bank ability to continue as a going concern
and are satisfied that the Bank has the resources to continne in business for the foreseeable
future. The parent Bank has committed to continue providing support to the Bank to meet its
obligations in the foresecable future. As a result, the Directors are not aware of any matenal
uncertainties thai may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the financial staiements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

In view of the foregoing, the Directors consider it appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on the going concern basis.
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2.

DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(e)  Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRSs requires management to
make judgments, cstimates and assumptions that affect the application of accountiang policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting year,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting polices applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. These polices have been applied consistently.

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

(i) New Standards and interpretations effective and early adopted during the year

The Bank adopied the following new standards and amendments during the vear ended
31 December 2021, including consequential amendments to other standards with the
date of mitial application by the Bank being 1 January 2021.

New standard or amendments Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments to
IFRS 16) 1 June 2020
Interest rate benchmark reform-phase 2 (Amendments to
IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) 1 January 2021

The above standards adopted in 2021 did pot have a significant impact on the Bank’s
financials statements for the year.

(i) Standards and interpretations not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2020 and have not been applied in preparing
these financial statements. The Bank does not plan to adopt these standards early.
These are summarised below,
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{(a)  Application of new and revised IFRSs (continued)

(7} Standards and interpreiaiions not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2021

-~ continued

New standard or amendments

Kifective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021 (Amendment to [FRS 16)

1 April 2021

Onerous contracts: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
{(Amendments to 1AS 37).

1 January 2022

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use (Amendments to IAS 16)

I January 2022

Annual improvements to [FRS standards 2018-2020

1 Japuary 2022

Reference to Conceptual Framework (Amendments io IFRS
3)

1 January 2022

Classification of T.iabilities as Current or Non-current
(Amendments to TAS 1)

I January 2023

TFRS 17 Insurance Confracts

1 January 2023

Classification of Habilities as current or non-current
{Amendments to IAS 1)

1 Janwary 2023

Amendments to JFRS 17

1 Jnauary 2023

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to [AS 1
and IFRS Practice Stafement 2)

I January 2023

Definition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to IAS 8)

1 January 2023

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from
a Single Transaction { Amendtments to IAS 12 Income
Taxes)

1 January 2023

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Company (Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS
28).

Optional

The above standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Bank’s

financial statements.

(b) Revenue recognition

(i)

Income from financing arrangements and investing activities

Effective Interest rate

Profit income and expense for all financial instruments except for those classified as
held for trading or those measured or designated as at FVTPL are recognised in
‘Income from financing and investing’ as ‘Profit income’ and ‘Depositors share of
profit” in the profit or loss account using the effective interest method. Whereas IFRS
refers to effecttve interest raie method, within these financial statements, income from

financing arrangements is referred to as profit income.
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3.

DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TiE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(¢}

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Income from financing arrangemenis and investing activifies - continued

Effective Inferest rate — continued

The effective interest rafe (EIR) is the rate that exacily discounts estimated future cash
flows of the financial instrument through the expected life of the financial instrament
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all the
contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are incremental and directly attributable to the specific financing
arrangement, iransaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. For financial
assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss at initial recognition.

The profit income is calculated by applying the BIR to the gross carrying amount of
non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset
before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance), or to the amortised cost of
financial liabilities. For credit-impaired financial assets the profit income is calculated
by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)). For
financial assets originated or purchased credit-impatred (POCI) the EIR reflects the
ECLs in determining the future cash flows expected to be received from the financial
asset.

i) Non-Shari’ah compliant income
24

The Bank does not, as a policy, engage in any activities that involve receipt or payment
of interest.

(iit}  Fees and commission income

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of
EIR (see above). The fees included in this part of the Bank’s statement of profit or loss
include among other things fees charged for servicing a financing arrangement, non-
‘utilisation fees relating to financing arrangement commitments when it 1s unlikely that
these will result in a specific financing arrangement and financing arrangement
syndication fees.

Foreign currencies
Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated into Kenya shillings at the
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the reporting date are
translated into Kenya shillings at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Resulting exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss for the year. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into Kenya
shillings at the exchange rate ruling at the date on which the fair value is determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured based on
historical cost are translated in to Kenya shillings using the exchange rate ruling at the date
of the transaction.
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3.

DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Property and equipment
(i) Recopuition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at historical cost less accurulated
depreciation and impairment fosses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

(i)  Subsequent cost

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property or equipment is recognised
in the cairying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Bank and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised
in the profit or loss.

(iii} Depreciation
Depreciation is charged fo the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated

useful lives of each item of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives
are as foilows:

Asset class Depreciation rate
Leasehold improvements 16.7%
Equipmest, fixtures and fittings 20.0%
Motor vehicle 25.0%
Computers 33.3%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date,

(iv)  Disposal of property and equipment

Gain and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from the disposal with the carrying amount of the property
and equipment and are recognised net in profit or Jloss.

Intangible assets

Computer software licenses are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. Software is amortised on a straight-line basis
in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date that is available for use. The
estimated useful life of software is 5 years and 10 years for the core banking system.
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3.

DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

®

Intangible asseis (continued)

The amortisation method, useful life and the residual value are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
patiern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for
by changing the amortisation method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting
estimates.

Taxation

Income fax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in
equity or Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

The Baok has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including
uncertain tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore has
accounted for them under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
and has recognised the related expenses in ‘other expenses’.

(i)  Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or
loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of
the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to
income taxes, if any. If is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends. Current
tax assets and liabilities are offset onty if certain criteria are met.

(i) Deferved tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for: — termporary differences on
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; - temporary
differences related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Bank is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and — taxable temporary differences
arising on the inifial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are
determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the
amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset
m full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based on business plans for the Bank. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when
the probability of future taxable profits improves.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{f) Taxation {confinued)

(i)

Deferred tax — continued

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised
io the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if there is any.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Bank expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For this purpose, the carrying amount of
imvestment property measured at fair value is presumed to be recovered through sale,
and the Bank has not rebutted this presumption.

(e} Financial instruments

@

(%)

Recognition and inifial measurement

The Bank initially recognises loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issued and
subordinated liabilities on the date on which they are originated. All other financial
mstruments (including regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets) are
recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Bank becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the insirument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. The fair value of a financial instrument at initial
recognition is generally its transaction price.

Classification

The Bank classifies its financial assets into three principal classification categories
based on the cash flow characteristics of the asset and the business model assessment:

— measured at Amortised Cost;
— Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI); and
— Fair Value throngh Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost, per IFRS, in this AFS refer to
financing arrangements and other assets.
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3.

DIB BANK KFENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e}

Financial instruments (continzed)

(1)

Classification - coniinued

Amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— it is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and '

~- 1ts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

The Bank recognises cash and batances with Central Bank, balances due from banking
institutions, financing arrangements and other assets at amortised cost.

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Inceme (FVOCI) — Debt

A financial asset which is a debt instrument is measured at FVOCT only if it meets both
of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— it 1s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

— its contractual ferms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

The Bank has no financial assets classified at FVOCL
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — Equity

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may
irrevocabty elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCL This election is
made on an mnvestment-by investment basis. The Bank currently does not have any
squity investments,

Fajr Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described
above are measured at FVTPL. In addition, on initial recognition the Bank may
irevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The Bank does not have financial assets classified at FVTPL. A financial asset is
classified into one of these categories on initial recognition.

Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in
the scope of IFRS 9 are not separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a
whole is assessed for classification.
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3.

DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICEES (Continued)

(e)

Finanecial instriuments - continued

(i)

Classification - continued

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are selely payments of principal
and Interest (SSPI)

To determine whether a financial asset should be classified as measured at amortised
cost, FVOCI or FVTPL, an entity assesses whether the cash flows from the financial
asset represent, on specified dates, solely payments of principal and interest on the
principa) amount outstanding - i.e. the SPPI criterion. A financial asset that does not
meet the SPPI criterion is always measured at FVTPL, unless it is an equity instroment
for which an entity applies the FVOCT election.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. The definition of principal reflects the economics
of the financial asset from the perspective of the current bolder. This means that an
entity assesses the assel's confractual cash flow characieristics by comparing the
contractual cash flows to the amount that it actually invested.

‘Profit’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as
well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
profit, the Bank considered the contractual ferms of the instrument. This included
assessing whether the financial assel confained a contractual term that could change
the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
conditton. In making the assessment, the Bank considered:

— contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

— leverage features;

— prepayment and extension terms;

— terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets — e.g. non-
recourse asset arrangements; and

— features that modify consideration for the time value of money — ¢.g. periodic reset
of profit rates.

Contractual features that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash
flows that is unrelated to a basic financing arrangement, such as exposure to changes
in equity prices or commodity prices, give rise (o confractual cash flows that do not
meet the SPPI criterion.

The bank has determined that the contractzal cash flows of these Financing
arratgements are SPPI because the profit is not leveraged and though may vary will
still represent consideration for time value of money, other basic lending risks and
costs assoclated with the principal amount outstanding,.
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3.

DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2621 (CONTINUED)

SEGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e} Financial instruments (continned)

(i)

Classification - confinued

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and Enterest (SSPI) - confinuned

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
profit.

De minimis

A confractual cash flow charactenistic does not affect the classification of 2 financial
asset if it could have only a de minimis effect on the financial asset's contractual cash
flows.

To make this determination, the Bank considers the possible effect of the contractual
cash flow characteristic in each reparting period and cumulatively over the life of the
financial asset.

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business
is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered
includes:

— the staied policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those
policies in practice, inclnding whether management’s sfrategy focuses on earning
contractual profit revenue, maintaining a particular profit rate profile, maiching the
duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabiliiies that are funding
those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Bank’s
management,

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial asseis
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed, 7

— how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows
coliected; and |

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity. However, information about
sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of
how the Bank’s stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and
how cash flows are realised.
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3.

DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (confinued)

()

(i3}

(iv)

Classification - continuned

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and Interest (85P1) - continved

Business model assessment - continued

Financial assets that are held for trading and those that are managed and whose
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis will be measured at FVTPL because they
are neither held to collect confractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual
cash flows and'to sell financial assets.

The Bank’s financial assets are all held in held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities

IFRS 9 largely retained the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. However, although under JTAS 39 fair value
changes of habilities designated under the fair value option were recognised in profit
and loss, under [FRS 9, fair value changes are generally presented as follows: -

— the amount of change in fair value that is attributable to changes in credit risk of
the liability is presented in OCI and;
— the remaining amount of change in fair value is presented in profit or loss.

The Bank classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Customer deposits, balances due to banking institutions and other Habilities are
classified at amortised cost.

Reclassification

The Bank only reclassifies financial assets when management changes the business
model for managing the financial assets. In that instance all affected financial assets
are reclassified. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent, and are determined
by the Bank’s senior management as a result of external or internal changes.

Derecognition and contract modification

‘The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
{rom the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows on the financial asset in a {ransaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by the Bank is recognised as a separate asset
or liability.
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3.

DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

v

{vi)

(vi}

Derecognition and coniract modificotion — continued

However, when the modification of a financial instrument not measured at FVTPL
does not result in derecognition, the Bank will recalculate the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset {or the amortised cost of the financial liability} by discounting the
modified contractual cash flows at the original effective profit rate and recognise any
resulting adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire.

Write-off

The Bank directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the
entity has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a
portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Recoveries of amounts previousty written off are recognised when cash is received and
are included in ‘impairment losses on financial instruments’ in the statement of profit
or loss and OCL

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Bank’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Bank has a legal right to set off the
amounts and if intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simnultanecusly.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or
for gains and losses arising from a Bank of similar transactions such as in the Bank’s
trading activity.

Impairment - financing arvangements, off balance sheet commitments and financiol
guarantee confracts

The Bank recognises loss allowances for ECL on the following financial instrurnents
that are not measured at FVTPL:

— financial assets that are debt instruments — this applies to the Bank’s financing
arrangements to customers, cash and balances with Central Bank, balances due
from banking institutions and other assets; and

- Off balance sheet financing arrangement commitments and financial guarantee
confracts issued (previously, trapairment was measured under IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) - this applies to the Bank’s off
balance sheet exposures where credit intervention is not required for the
counterparty to access the credit facility.
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DIiB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
(e)  Financial instruments (continued)

(vii) Impairmeni — financing arvangements, off balance sheet commitments and
Jfinancial guarantee consracts - continued

No mmpairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

The Bank recognises loss allowance at an amount equal to either 12-month ECLs or
lifetime ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expecied life of a financial instrament, whereas 12-month ECLs are the
portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of a financial instrument
is less than 12 months), weighted by the probability of that default occurring.

The Bank recognises loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except in
the cases where credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition. Loss
allowances for trade and lease receivables will always be measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs applying the simplified approach.

The impairment requirements of IFRS 9 are complex and require managemernt
judgements, estimates and assumptions, particularly in the following areas, which are
discussed in detail below and in note 5(a):

— assessing whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition; and
—- Incorporating forward-looking information into the measurement of ECLs.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses and will be measured as
follows:

— financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: the present value
of all cash shortfalls - i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity
mn accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects {o receive;

— financial assefs that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows;

— undrawn Financing commitments: the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn down
and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive; and

— financial guarantee contracts: the present value of the expected payments o
reimburse the holder less any amounts that the Bank expects to recover.

An asset is credit-impaired if one or more events have occurred that have a detrimental

impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. The following are examples of
such events:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coniinued)
(¢} Financial instruaments — continued

(vii} Impairment ~ financing arrangements, off bulance sheet commitments and
Sinancial guarantee contracts - continued

Measurement of ECLs — continued

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the counter party in a financing
arrangement;

-~ @ breach of contract - e.g. a default or past-due event;

— a lender having granted a concession to the counter party in a financing
arrangement - for economic or contractual reasons relating to the counter party in
a financing arrangement's financial difficulty - that the lender would not otherwise
constder;

— it becoming probable that the counter party in a financing arrangement will enter
bankrupicy or other financial re-organisation,

— the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

— the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.

The Bank recognises loss allowances for ECL on the following financial instruments
that are not measured at FVTPL: — financial assets that are debt instruments; — lease
receivables; — financial guarantee contracts issued; and — loan commitments issued. No
Impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

The Bank measures loss aliowances at an amount equal to lifetine ECL., except for the
following, for which they are measured as 12-month ECL:

— debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date; and

—— other financial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk bas
not increased significantly since their inifial recognition.

Loss allowances for lease receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL.

The Bank considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit
risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.
The Bank does not apply the low credit risk exemption to any other financial
mstruments.

12-month ECL are the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.
Financial instruments for which 12-month ECL are recognised are referred to as “Stage
1 financial instruments’, Financial instruments allocated to Stage 1 have not undergone
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and are not credit-impaired.
Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from ali possible default events over the expected
life of the financial instrument or the maximum contractual period of exposure.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Financial instruments — continued

(vii) Impairment - finencing wrangements, off balance sheet commitments and
financiol guaraniee contracts - continuned

Measurement of ECLs - continued

Financial instruments for which lifetime ECL are recognised but that are not credit-
impaired are referred to as “Stage 2 financial instruments’. Financial instroments
allocated to Stage 2 are those that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition but are not credit-impaired. Financial instruments for which
lifetime ECL are recognised and that are credit-impaired are referred to as ‘Stage 3
financial instruments’.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as
follows:

— financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to
receive);

— financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the present vatue of estimated future cash
flows;

— undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the
coniracinal cash flows that are due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn down
and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive; and

~— financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less
any amounts that the Group expects {0 recover.

When discounting future cash flows, the following discount rates are used:

— financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets and jease receivables: the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof;

— POCI assets: a credit-adjusted effective interest rate;

~ lease receivables: the discount rate used in measuring the lease receivable;

— updrawn loan commitments: the effective interest rate, or an approximation
thereof, that will be applied to the financial asset resulting from the loan
commitment; and

- financial guarantee contracts issued: the rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks that are specific to the
cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e} Financial instruments — continued

(vi)  Impairmens - financing arrangemenis, off balance sheet commitments and
Jinancial puarantee conivacts - continued

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial
asset is replaced with a new one due fo financial difficulties of the borrower, then an
assessment 1s made of whether the financial asset should be derecognised and ECL are
measured as follows.

— If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset,
then the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included
in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing asset

— If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then
the expected fair value of the new asset s treated as the final cash flow from the
existing financial asset at the fime of its derecognition. This amount is included in
calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted
from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the original
effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assefs

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amoriised
cost, debt financial assets carried at FVOCI and finance lease receivables are credit
mmpaired (referred to as *Stage 3 financia) assets’).

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable

data:

-— significant financial difficutty of the borrower or issuer;

— breach of contract such as a default or pasi-due event;

— the resiructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would
not consider otherwise;

— it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

~— the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties,

Aloan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is
usually considered fo be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not
receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other
indicators of impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more
is considered credit-impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is
different.
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DIB BANK KENVA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
(¢) Financial instruments - confinued

{(vii) Fmpairment — financing arrangements, off balance sheet commitments and
financial guarantee contracts - continued

Credit-impaired financial assets — continued

In making an assessment of whether an investment in soverei go debt is credit-impaired,
the Bank considers the following factors.

— The market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in bond yields.

— The rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness.

— The country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance.

—— The probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses
through voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.

— The intemational support mechanisms in place to provide the necessary support as
‘lender of last resort’ to that country, as well as the intention, reflected in public
statements, of governments and agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes
an assessment of the depth of those mechanisms and, irrespective of the political
intent, whether there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.

POCI financial assets

POCI financial assets are asscts that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. For
POCT assets, lifetime ECL are incorporated into the calculation of the effective interest
rate on initial recognition. Consequently, POCI assets do not caiTy an impairment
allowance on initial recognition. The amount recognised as a loss allowance
subsequent to initial recoguition is equal to the changes in lifetime ECL since initial
recognition of the asset.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statemeni of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as
follows:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the Eross carrying
amount of the assets;

— loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision;

— where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn cormponent,
and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component
scparately from those on the drawn component: the Bank presents a combined loss
allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction
from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss
allowance over the gross amount of the drawn comaponent is presented as a
provision; and

~— debt mstruments tmeasured at FVOCL no loss allowance is recognised in the
statement of financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their
fair value. However, the loss allowance is disclosed and is recognised in retained
£arnings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMRBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() Impairment of non-financial assets

The camrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets other than deferred iax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairmen.
If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds ifs recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset
group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(group of units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An mmpairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

{g) Contingent liabilities

Letters of credit, guarantees, bills for collection and swaps are accounted for as off balance
sheet transactions and disclosed as contingent liabilities. Estimates of the outcome and of the
financial effect of contingent liabilities are made by the management based on the
information available up to the date the financial statements are approved for issue by the
Directors. Contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount that would be
recognised in accordance with IAS 37 and the amount recognised initially less cumulative
amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS 9.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation of the cash flows in the financial statements the cash and cash
equivalents include notes and coins in hand, unrestricted balances held with ceniral barks
and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair vatue and are
used by the bank in the management of its short term commitments. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position,
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(iy Employee benefits

(1) Short term emplopee benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related services are provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Bank has a present or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past services provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliabty.

(i} Post-employment benefits obligations

The Bank contributes to the statutory National Social Secunty Fund (NSSF), This is a
defined contribution scheme to which the Bank’s obligation is limited to a specified
contribution per employee per month. Currently the Bank’s contribution is limited to
KShs 200 per employee per month and is charged in the profit and loss in the year to
which it relates.

(i) Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are
declared and proposed dividends are disclosed as a separate component of equity.

(k) Foreign exchange income and expenses

T'his comprises foreign exchange differences. Foreign exchange gains and losses are reported
on a net basis and are recognised in profit or loss.

(I} Determination of fair valoes

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal
or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date.

The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. When available, the Bank
measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument.

A market is regarded as active if transactions for the assel or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. If there
15 no quoted prices in an active market, then the Bank uvses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.
The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would
take into account in pricing a transaction.

{m) Share capifal

Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the issue of equity instrument, net of any
taxes are deducted from the initial measure of the equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THBE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

3. SEGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

(0)

Related party {ransactions

The Bank enters into transactions, arrangements and agreements involving Divectors, senior
management and their related concerns in the ordinary course of business.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Bank uses the definition
of a lease in [FRS 16.

This policy 1s applied to contracts entered inte (or changed) on or after 1 January 2019,

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Bank
allocates consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
standalone price.

The Bank recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any mitial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs {o dismantle and remove
any improvements made to branches or office premises. '

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
comumencement date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements
of the lease liability,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease paymenis that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicif in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Bank deterrmines its incremental borrowing rate by analysing its borrowings from
various external sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and
type of asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

~— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

—— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise
an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Bank is
reasonably certain not to lerminate early.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0) Leases {continned)

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a change in the Bank’s estimate of the amount expected {0 be payabie under
a residual value goarantee, if the Bank changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease

payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Bank presents right-of-use assets in ‘property and equipment’ and lease liabilities are
presented as a line item in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and Jeases of low-value assets

The Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of
low-value assets and short-term leases. The Bank recognises the lease payrents associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
THE BANK’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, management has made estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of futwre events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. These are dealt with below:

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Bank’s policies
Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the
business model test. The Bank determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups
of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance
of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance
of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.

The Bank monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior io
their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent
with the objective of the business for which the asset was held, Monitoring is part of the Bank’s
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assels
are held continues to be appropriate and if it is pot appropriate whether there has been a change
in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such
changes were required during the periods presented.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE
BANK’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{2} Critical accounting judgements in applving the Banl(’s policies {continued)

(b)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 2, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1
assets, or lifetime BECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assels. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recogmtion. IFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased, the Bank takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Establishing groups of assels with similar credit risk characteristics

When ECLs are measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped on the
basis of shared risk characteristics. The Bank monitors the appropriateness of the credit risk
characteristics on an ongoing basis to assess whether they continue to be similar. This is
required in order to ensure that should credit risk characteristics change there is appropriate re-
segmentation of the assets. This may result in new portfolios being created or assets moving to

an existing portfolio that better reflects the simtlar credit risk characteristics of that group of
assets. Re-segmentation of portfolios and movement between portfolios 1s more common when
there is a significant increase in credit risk {or when that significant increase reverses) and so
assets move from 12-month to lifetime ECLs, or vice versa, but it can also occur within
portfolios that continue to be measured on the same basis of 12-month or lifetime ECLs but
the amount of ECL changes because the credit nisk of the porifolios differ.

Models and assumptions used
The Bank uses various models and assumptions it estimating BECL. Judgement is applied in

identifying the most appropriate model for each type of asset, as well as for determining the
assumpiions used in these models, inciuding assumptions that relate to key drivers of credit risk,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type
of product and determining the forward-looking information relevant to each scenario.

When measuring BECL the Bank uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic
drivers and how these drivers will affect the Probability of default of different segments.

Probability of default:
PD constitutes a key input in measuring BCL. PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default

over a given time hotizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of futare conditions.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE
BANK’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{b) Key sources of estimaation uncertainty (continued)
Loss Given Default:

LGD 15 an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into
account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements.

FProperty and equipment

Critical estimates are made by the Directors in determining the useful life and depreciation
rates for property and equipment.

Taxation

Tudgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity
of legislation. There are many transactions and calculations for which ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Bank recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due, Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
inittally recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such deterimination is made.

The Bank recognises the net future tax benefit that relates to deferred income tax assets o
the extent that it is probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax assets requires the
Bank to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income.
Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the
application of existing tax laws. To the extent that fature cash flows and taxable income differ
significantly from estimates, the ability of the Bank to realise the net deferred tax assets
recorded at the reporting date could be impacted.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Intreduction and overview
The Bank has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

— Credit risk

— Liquidity risk

— Market risks

— Currency risk

— Settlement risk

— Capital management

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Bank’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Bank’s management
of capital.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continned)
Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Banl’s
risk management framework. The Board has established the Assel and Liability (ALCO), Country
Management, Credit Management, Crisis Management and Risk Management committees, which
are responsible for developing and monitoring risk management policies in their specified areas.

All Board committees have both executive and non-executive members and report regularly to the
Board of Directors on their activities.

The Bank’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Bank, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to Kmits.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions, products and services offered. The Bank, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Bank’s risk
management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Bank. The Bank’s Audit Committee is assisted in
these functions by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

(a8) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Bank’s
financing arrangements for customers and other Bank’s and investment securities. For risk
management reporting purposes, the Bank considers and consolidates all elements of credit
risk exposure.

For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on trading securities is managed
independently, but reported as a component of market risk exposure.

The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to its
Credit Management Committee. A separate Credit department, reporting to the Credit
Committee, 1s responsible for oversight of the Bank’s credit risk, including:

— Formulating credit policies in consultation with business units, covering collateral
requirements, credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, documentary and legal
procedures, and compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements.

— Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities.
Authorisation limits are allocated to business unit Credit Officers. Larger facilities
require approval by the Credit Department, Head of Credit, Credit Committee or the
Board of Directors as appropriate.
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5, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
{2} Credit risk (continued)

~ Reviewing and assessing credit risk. The Credit Department assesses all credit exposures
in excess of designated limits, prior to facilities being committed to customers by the
business unit concerned. Renewals and reviews of facilities are subject to the same
TEVIEW Process.

— Limiting concentrations of exposure to counterparties, geographies and industries (for
financing assets and advances), and by issuer, credit rating band, market liquidity and
country (for investment securities).

— Developing and maintaining the Bank’s risk grading in order to categorise exposures
according to the degree of risk of financial loss faced and to focus management on the
attendant nisks. The risk grading system is-used in defermining where impairment
provisions may be required against specific credit exposares. The current risk grading
framework consists of eight grades reflecting varying degrees of risk of default and the
availability of collateral or other credit risk mitigation.

-~ The responsibility for setting risk grades lies with the final approving executive /
committee as appropriate. Risk grades are subject to regular reviews by the Risk
Management Department,

— Reviewing compliance of business units with agreed exposure limits, including those for
selected industries, country risk and product types. Regular reports are provided to the
Credit Department on the credit quality of local portfolios and appropriate corrective
action is taken.

— Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best
practice throughout the Bank in the management of credif risk.

Lach business unit is required to implement the Bank credit policies and procedures, with
credit approval authorities delegated from the Credit Committee. Each business unif has a
Chief Credit Risk officer who reports on all credit related matters to local management and
the Credit Committee. Each business unit is responsible for the quality and performance of
its credit portfolio and for monitoring and controlling all credit risks in its portfolios,
including those subject to central approval. Regular audits of business units and Credit
processes are undertaken by Internal Audit,

Credit quality

The following table sets out information about the credit quality and credit risk exposure of
financial assets measured at amortised cost. Unless specifically indicated, the amounts in the
table represent gross carrying amounts. For off balance sheet commitments the amounts in
the table represent the undrawn portion of amounts committed. Off balance sheet
commitments are letters of credit and bank guarantees.

Explanation of the terms ‘Stage 1°, ‘Stage 2°, “Stage 37 and Purchased originated credit
impaired (POCI) assets is included in Note 3.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Ceontinued)
(a) Credit risk {continued)

Credit quality - continued

At 31 December 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
KShs ‘8060  KShs ‘0068 KShs ‘060  KShs ‘000
Financing arrangements — Murabaha
Normal 2,667,339 - - 2,667,339
Waich : - 988,469 - 088,469
Non-performing - - 820,311 820,311
2,667,339 988,469 820,311 4,476,119
Loss allowance (Note 14(b)) ( 420) (68,197) (108,495 ( 177,112)
Carrying amount 2,606,919 920,272 711,816 4,299,007
At 31 December 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tota}
IKShs ‘000  KShs ‘000 KShs 000  KShs ‘000
Financing arrangements — Ijarah
Normal 3,355,693 - - 3,355,693
Watch - 1,461,448 - 1,461,448
Nor-performing - - 671,620 671,620
3,355,693 146],448 671,620 5,488,761
Loss allowance (Noie 14(b)) (10271) ( 27,763) ( 36,223) { 74,257)
Carrying amount 3,345.422 1,433,685 635,397 5,414,504
At 31 December 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000 KShs <000  KShs ‘000
Off balance sheet commitments
Normal 873,787 - 873,787
Watch - - - -
Non-performing T - - -
873,787 - - 873,787
Loss aliowance (Note 14(b)) { 1.826) - - ( 1,826)
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Credif risk (continned)

Credit guality - continzed

At 31 December 2620
Firancing arrangements — Murabaha
Normal

Watch
Non-performing

Loss allowance (Note 14(b))
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2020

Financing arrangements — Ijarah
Normal

Watch
Non-performing

Loss allowance (Note 14(b))

Carrying amount

At 31 December 2020

Off balapce sheet commitments
Normal

Walch
Nozn-performing

Loss allowance (Note 14(b))

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
¥ Shs ‘000 KShs 000 KShs 000  KShs *000
3,540,702 - - 3,540,702
- 162,895 - 162,895
- - 64,333 64,333
3,540,702 162,835 64,333 3,767,930
{ 581y (14,675)  (56,607) (  T71,863)
3,540,121 148,220 7,726 3,696,067
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000 KShs“000  KShs 000
4,460,491 - - 4,460,491
- 553,277 - 553,277
- - 60,186 60,186
4,460,491 553,277 60,186 5,073,954
( 10,676) (10,617) (2,110)  ( 23.403)
4,449,815 542,660 58,876 5,050,551
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000 KShs ‘600  KShs “000
866,928 - - 866,928
866,928 - - 866,928
{ 688) - - ( 688)
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

. (2)

Credit risk (continued)

Credif guality - continued

The following table sets out the overdue status of financing arrangements in stage 1, 2 and 3.

At 31 December 2621

Financing arrangements at

amortised cost-Murabaha- Gross

carrying amount
Current

Overdue < 30
Overdue >30<90
Overdue >90

Total

At 31 December 2021
Financing arrangements at
amortised costs - Ijarah- Gross
carrying amount

Current

Overdue < 30

Overdue >30<90

Overdue >90

Total

At 31 December 2020

Financing arrangements at

amortised cost-Murabaha- Gross

carrying amount
Current

Overdue < 30
Overdue >30<90
Overdue >90

Total

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000

2,413,907 - - 2,413,907

475,860 - - 475,860

- 984,767 - 984,767

- - 601,585 601,585

2,889,767 984,767 601,585 4,476,119

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

KShs 600  KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000  KShs ‘000

2,830,304 - - 2,830,304

851,182 - - 851,182

- 1,171,717 - 1,171,717

- - 635,558 635,558

3,681,486 1,171,717 635,558 5,488,761

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

KShs ‘000 KShs ‘000 KShs <000 KShs ‘000

3,233,304 - - 3,233,304

366,592 - - 366,592

- 109,585 - 109,585

- - 58,449 58,449

3,599,896 109,585 58,449 3,767,930
Pape 4%
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT (Continned)

(2)

Credit rigk (confinned)

Credit quality - continued

At 31 December 2020 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
KShs “000 KShs 000 KShs <000  KShs <000

KFinancing arrangements at

amortised costs - [jarah- Gross

carrying amount

Current 4,349,473 - - 4,349,473

Overdue < 30 524 567 - - 524 567

Ovwerdue >30<90 - 173,295 “ 173,295

Overdue >90 - - 26,619 26,619

Total 4,874,040 173,295 26,619 5,073,954

Write-off policy

The Bank may write off a financing arrangement balance {(and any related allowances for
impairment losses) when Credit determines that the financing arrangements are uncollectible.
This determination is reached after considering information such as the occurrence of
significant changes in the customer’s financial position such that the customer can no longer
pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire
eXposure.

In the year the Bank did not have any written off financial arrangements.

Collateral

The Bank holds collateral against financing arrangements to customers in the form of
mortgage profits over property, registered securities over assets, and guarantees. Estimates
of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of financing, and

generally are not updated except when a financing asset is individually assessed as impaired.

Collateral generally is not held over deposits and balances due from Banking institutions,
except when securities are held as part of reverse repurchase and securities financing activity.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contirued)

(a)

Credit risk {continued)
Collateral - continued
There have been no significant changes in the quality of the collateral held.

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held against
financing arrangements is shown below:

Fair values of collateral held: 2021 2020
KShs 000 KShs 600
Stage 1 3,695,764 8,179,011
Stage 2 3,765,168 606,673,
Stage 3 1,347,217 169,990
8.808.149 $.955.074

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
Significant increase in credit risk

The Bank in determining whether the credit risk (L.e. risk of default) on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition considered reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort, ipcluding both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Bank’s historical
experience and expert credit assessment.

Information that is more forward-looking than past due status (either on an individual or a
collective basis) is not available without unduve cost or effort, hence the Bank has used past
due information and gualitative information to determine whether there have been significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The Bank has established a framework that incorporates both past due information and
qualitative information to determine whether the credit risk on a particular financial
instroment has increased significantly since initial recognition.

The framework aligns with the Bank’s internal credit risk management process.

The Bank will deem the credit risk of a particular exposure to bave increased significanily
since initial recognition if, the financial asset is more than 30 days in arrears.

Additionally, in certain instances, using its expert credit judgement and, where possible,
relevant historical experience, the Bank may determine that an exposure has undergone a
significant increase in credit risk and classify the exposure as “watch’ if’ particular qualitative
factors indicate so and those indicators may not be fully captured by its past due status on a
timely basts.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BECEMBER 20621 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2)

Credif risk (continued)

Inprets, assumptions and techiigues used for estimuting impairment - coniinued
Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly - continued

The following qualitative criteria 1s applied:

— Classification of exposures by any other Banks and Financial institutions or local Credit
Reference Bureau (CRB).

— Unavailable/inadequate financial information/financial statements;

— Quahfied report by external auditors;

— Significant contingent liabilities;

-—— Laoss of key staff in the organization;

- Increase in operational risk and higher occurrence of frandulent activities;

— Continued delay and non-cooperation by the counterparty to a financing arrangement in
providing key relevant documentation,

— Deterioration in credit worthiness due to factors other than those listed above

As a backstop, and as required by IFRS 9, the Bank will presumptively consider that a
significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more than 30 days past
due. The Bank will determine days past due by counting the number of days since the earliest
elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Also see note 4(g).

Definition of default
The Bank will consider a financial asset to be in default when;

— the counter party in a financing arrangement is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Bank in full, without recourse by the Bank to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or

— the counter party in a financing arangement is more than 90 days past due on any
material credrt obligation to the Bank. This definition is largely consistent with the
Central Bank of Kenya definition that is used for regulatory purposes.

In assessing whether a counter party in a financing arrangement is in default, the Bank will
consider indicators that are:

— qualitative: e.g. breaches of covenant;

— quantitative: e.g. overdue status and non-payment of another obligation of the same
issuer to the Bank; and

— based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their
significance may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2)

Credit risk (continued)
Inpuis, assumptions and technigues used for estimating impairment - continued
Forward-looking information

Under IFRS 9, the Bank has incorporated forward-looking information in its measurement
of ECLs.

The forward-locking information {FLI) overlay has been derived on the following basis.

— Use of the Banking industry 10 years average annual growth rate; where the year on year
average growth rate of 18.4% is considered to be the base case scenarios while the
maximum and minireum year on year change are considered to be the worst and best
case scenarios respectively.

— Application of weightages on the 3 scenarios to derive a weighted FLI overlay.

Modified financial assets

The contractual terms of a financing arrangements may be modified for a number of reasons,
including changing market conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a
current or potential credit deterioration of the customer. An existing financing arrangement
whose terms have been modified may be derecognised and the renegotiated financing
arrangements recognised as a new financing arrangement at fair value.

Under TFRS 9, when the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does
not result in derecognition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased
significantly reflects comparison of the counter party in a financing arrangement’s initial
credit risk assessment and the current assessment at the point of modification.

The Bank repegotiates financing arrangements with customers in financial difficulties
(referred to as ‘restructuring’) to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of
default. Under the Bank’s restructuring policy, financing arrangements restructuring is
granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high
risk of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonabie efforts to pay under the
original contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the revised terms.

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of profit
payments and amending the terms of financing arrangements covenants. The Bank Credit
Committee regularfy reviews reports on restructuring activities.

Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of default and credit impairment and
expectations of restructuring are relevant (o assessing whether there is a significant increase
in credit misk (see above). Following forbearance, a customer needs to demonstrate
consistently good payment bebaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer
considered o be in default/credit-impaired or the PD is considered to have decreased such
that the Joss allowance reverts to being measured at an amount equal to 12-month BCLs,
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2)

Credit risk (continued)
Inputs, assusmptions and fechuigues vsed for estimoting Gmpairment - continved

Inputs into measurement of FCLs

The key inputs into the measurement of ECLs are likely to be the term structures of the
following variables:

— Probability of default (PD);
— loss given default (LGD); and
— exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters will be derived from internally developed models and other historical data
that leverage industry information. The PD will be adjusted to reflect forward-looking
information as described above.

D

PD estimates for financing arrangements are estimates at a certain date as follows;

— Use of the Bank’s own historical to date data to estimate the Probability of default (PD).

~ Segmentation of PD into the various business units and the staff porifolio noting the
differing characteristics in each business segment.

-~ Determination of separate PDs for stages 1 and stage 2 portfolios.

— Lifetime PD for stage 2 estimated based on marginal PDs from the Bank’s our internal
data.

—~ Where calculated segmental PDs are equal to 0%, the historical best PD of 0.38% is
assumed.

In arriving at the effective PDs, the Bank has incorporated an overlay of forward-looking
information which 1s derived on the following basis.

— Use of the Banking industry 10 years’ average annual growth rate; where the year on
year average growth rate 1s considered to be the base case scenario while the maximum
and minimum year on vear change are considered to be the worst and best case scenarios
respectively. Weightages are then applied on each scenario to amrive at a weighted FLI
overlay for inclusion nto the segmented PDs.

Loss Given Default (LGD)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Bank will estimate LGD
parameters based on collateral available against exposures and the history of recovery rates
of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models will consider the type of
collateral, seniority of the claim, time to recover in the event of foreclosure, counterparty
industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial asset. LGD
estimates are calibrated to consider the time to recover cash flows for different collateral
types and apply the forced sale value (FSV) of collateral. The collateral values to consider
will be calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) or a
close proxy of the EIR. The L.GD for unsecured financial assets is 100% unless management
assessment of the counter party in a financing arrangement supports a lower LGD.
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NOTES TO THE FINAWNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMRBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continned)

(2}

Credit risk (centinned)
Inputs, assumptions and iechnigues used for estimating lmpairiment - continued

Exposure at Default

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank will derive the
EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current
amount allowed under the contract, including amortisation, and prepayments. The EAD of a
financial asset will be the gross carrying amount at default plus profit payments that would
have been missed at the point of default. For financing commitments and financial
guarantees, the EAD will consider the amount drawn, as well as potential future amounts that
may be drawn or repaid under the contract, which will be estimated based on historical
observations and forward-looking forecasts.

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PT) for financial assets
for which credit risk has not significantly increased, the Bank will measure ECLs considering
the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any counter party in a
financing arrangement’s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if,
for risk management purposes, the Bank considers a longer period.

The maximum contractual period extends to the date at which the Bank has the right to
require repayment of an advance or terminate a financing arrangements comnitment or
guarantee,

For guarantee facilities and other revolving facilities that include both a financing
arrangement and an undrawn commitment component, the Bank will measure ECLs over
period of one year unless the expected life of the exposure can be reasonably determined.
Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial instruments
will be grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

— Product type; and
— Industry.

The groupings will be subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a particular
Bank remain appropriately homogeneous.

Ameount arising from ECL
Loss allowance

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening fo the closing balance of the loss
allowance by product.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinued)

{a) Credit risk (confinued)

Ameount arising from ECL - continued

Loss allowance - continued

Loss allowance

Financing arrangements — Murabaha

Balance at I January
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3

Net re-measurement of loss allowance

Net financial assets onginated or
purchased

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Balance at 31 December

Financing arrangements — ljarah

Balance at 1 Janunary

Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Net remeasurement of loss allowance
Net financial assets originated or
purchased

Financial assets that have been
derecognised

Balance at 31 December

31 December 2021
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
i2-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
KShs‘000  KShs‘000 KShs'000  KShs‘600
581 14,675 56,607 71,863
9,346 (3,253) {6,093) -
{1,859) 6,488 (4,629) -
(433) (7,855) 8,288 -
{8,311) 39,958 52,036 83,683
1,744 18,302 2,372 22,418
{648) (118) (86) (852)
420 68,197 108,495 177,112
31 December 2021
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL eredit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
KShs*000  KShs 000 KShs‘000  KShs*000
10,676 10,616 2,109 23,401
8,055 { 3,483) ( 4,572) -
( 37N 3,123 { 2,746) -
{ 615) { 3,533 4,148 -
{ 8,306) 21,079 38,658 51,431
917 917
(79 (39 (1,374) ( 1,492)
16,271 27,763 36,223 74,257
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR FNDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
{a) Credit risk {continoed)
Amount arising from ECL - confinued
Loss allowance - continued

Loss allowance

31 December 2621

Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Financing arrangements — off balance KShs‘000 KShs“000 KShs080  KShs*000
sheet commitnents (Note 14 (b))
Balance at 1 January 688 - - 688
Transfer to Stage 1 . - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 - . - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - - - -
Net financial assets oniginated or
purchased ' 1,826 - - 1,826
Financial assets that have been
derecognised {_688) - - { 688)
Balance at 31 December 1.826 - - 1,826
31 December 2020
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
Loss allowance ECL impaired impaired Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Financing arrangements — Murabaha KShs‘000  KShs‘000 KShs'000  KShs*0060
Balance at I January 14,358 2,037 28,497 44,897
Transfer to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 { 143) 143 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 { 435 {1,018) 1,453 -
Net re-measurement of loss allowance { 8,759) 1,811 22,671 15,723
Net financial assets originated or
purchased 5,967 12,466 10,842 29,275
Financial assets that have been
derecognised {10,407) ( 764) (6,856) (18,027)
Balance at 31 December 581 14,675 56,607 71,863
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DIB BANK KENYA TIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2)

Credit risk {continued)
Amonnt arising from ECL - continued

Loss allowance - continued

31 December 202§
Lifetime
¥CL not Lifetime
12-month eredit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Financing arrangements - Ijarah KShs*000  KShs‘000 KShs'000  KShs‘000
Balance at 1 January §,850 6,487 587 15,924
Transfer to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 { 35 35 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 { 33) 33 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance { 578) ( 183) 806 45
Net financial assets originated or
purchased 3,906 10,387 1.270 15,563
Financial assets that have been
derecognised {1,434) (6,108) { 587) { 8,129)
Balance at 31 December 10,676 190,618 2,109 23,403
Loss aliowance 31 December 2020
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-menth credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Financing arrangements — off balance KShs*000 KShs 000 KShs000  KShs“000
sheet commitments (Note 14 (b))
Balance at 1 January 233 - 233
‘Transfer to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 2 - - - -
Transfer to Stage 3 - - - -
Net financial assets originated or
purchased 688 - - 6858
Financial assets that have been
derecognised {233) - - (233)
Balance at 31 December 688 - - 088
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAY, STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(2)

Credit risk {continued)

Amount arising from ECL - continued

The Bank has carried out an assessment of the expected credit losses arising from the Bank’s

cash and balances with central bank, balances due from banking instituiions and other assets
and determined these to be immaterial. The credit losses have therefore not been recorded in
these financial statements.

The ECL on financing arrangements and off balance sheet commitments are presented in
financing arrangements and other liabilities respectively in the statement of financial
position.

The following table provides a reconciliation between:

— Amounts shown in the above tables reconciling opening and closing balances of loss
allowance for financing arrangements. .

— The impairment provision on financing assets' line item in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive imcome.

Financing Financing
arrangements  arrangements
- Murabaha - Ijarah at Off balance
. at amortised amortised sheet
31 December 2021 cost cost commitments Total
KShs000 KShs“000 KShs‘000  KShs‘600
Net re-measurement of loss
allowance 83,683 51,430 - 135,113
Net financial assets
originated or purchased 22,417 817 1,826 25,160
Financial assets that have
been derecognised { 852) { 1,492) { 2,344)
105,248 50,855 1,826 157,929
31 December 2020
Net re-measurement of loss
allowance 15,723 45 - 15,768
Net financial assets
originated or purchased 29275 15,563 688 45,526
Financial assets that have
been derecognised (18,027) { 8,129) (233) (26,389)
26,971 7,479 455 34,905
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DIB BANIK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a8} Credit risk {continued)
Oifsetting financial assets and financial Babilities

There are no financial assets and financial liability amounts in the statement of financial
position that have been offset in these financial statements.

Monitoring concenfration risk

The Bank monitors concenfrations of credit misk by economic sector. An analysis of
concentrations of credit risk at the reporting date is shown below:

2021 2021
KShs‘000 %
Concentration by Sector - 2021
Epergy 1,032,841 10
Manufaciuring 169,973 2
Real estate 1,995,901 20
Wholesale and retail trade 3,908,445 39
Transport and communication 2,121,326 21
Others 736,394 _8
Total gross financing arrangements 9,964 880 160
2020 2620
KShs“000 %
Concentration by Sector - 2020
Energy 810,260 9
Manufacturing 160,099 2
Real estate 2,019,953 23
Wholesale and retail trade 3,410,030 39
Trangport and communication 1,769,827 20
Others 671,715 i
Total gross financing arrangements 8,841,884 100
Monitoring concentration risk
The Bank’s other exposures to credit risk relates to:
2021 2021
K5hs‘060 %o
Cash and balances with Central Bank 1,531,751 42
Balances due from Banking institations 2,091,810 57
Other receivables 19.873 1
3.043.434 100
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (coniinned)

Momnitoring cencentration risk - continued

2620 2020

KShs 000 %

Cash and balances with Central Bank 1,104,606 42
Balaaces due from Banking institutions 1,518,722 57
Other receivables 20,531 1
2.643,919 100

All the above exposures have Jow risk and are in stage 1.

Liquidity risk

Liqudity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from
its financial liabilities.

Management of liquidity risk

The Bank’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incwrring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Bank’s reputation.

The Bank’s treasury unit receives information from other business units regarding the
liguidity profile of their financial assets and Habilities and details of other projected cash
flows arising from projected future business.

Treasury then maintains a portfolio of short-term liquid assets, largely made up of deposits
and balances due from Banking institutions and other inter-Bank facilities, to ensure that
sufficient liguidity is maintained within the Bank. The liquidity requirements of business
units are met through short-term funding from treasury to cover any short-term fluctuations
and longer term funding to address any structural liquidity requirements.

The daily liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing is conducted
under a variety of scenarios covering both normal and more severe market conditions. All
Liquidity policies and procedures are subject to review and approval by Assets and Liabilities
Committee (ALCO). Datly reports cover the liquidity position of the Bank. A summary
report, including any exceptions and remedial action taken, is submitted regularly to ALCO.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The key measure used by the Bank for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of net liquid assets
to deposits from customers.

For this purpose, net liquid assets are considered as including cash and cash equivalents and
other Liquid assets. Details of the reported Bank ratio of net liguid assets to deposits and
customers at the reporting date and during the reporting period were as follows:

Page 57

A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Exposure to hquidity risk — centinued

Average for the period
Maximum for the period
Minimum for the period

31 December 2021

Assets

Cash and balances
with Central Bank
Balances with other
companies
Financing
arrangements

Other asseis

Total financial assets

Liabilities
Customer deposits
Other liabilities
Lease Labilities

Total firancial
liabilities

2021 2029
Yo %
24.5 26.6
30.4 322
20.2 214
The foliowing are the residual contractual maturities of assets and liabilities.
Residnal contractital maturities of assets and liabilities
Due Due
Due  between 3 between Due
within 3 and 12 YTand5 after 5
months months years years Total
KShs*000  KShs*000 KShs‘000 KShs‘000 KShs*000
1,531,751 - - - 1,531,751
2,091,810 - - - 2,091,810
1,399,318 285,098 3,609,194 4,671,270 9,964,880
- - 19,873 - 19,873
5,022,879 285,098 3,629,067 4671,270 13,608,314
8,246,540 3,679,149 - - 11,925,689
151,329 - - - 151,329
- 45,610 236,731 - 282,341
8,397,869 3,724,759 236,731 - 12,359,359
(3,374,990) (3,439,661) 3,392,336 4,671,270 1,248,955

* The Bank reported a negative short-term Hquidity resulting from maturity differences
between net liquid assets and short-term liabilities. To address this, the Bank has put in
place a contingent liguidity management plan, including a credit line of USD 13m with the
parent Bank from which it can draw on a need basis to mitigate short-term liquidity

mismatches.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Liguidity risk (continued)

Exposure to liquidity risk - continued

Residual contractual maturities of assets and liabilities - confinued

31 December 2026

Assets

Cash and balances
with Central Bank
Balances with other
companies
Financing
arrangements

Other assets

Total financial
assefs

Liabilifies
Customer deposits

Other liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total financial
liabilities

Market risk

Due Pue
Due between  between 1
within 3 3and 12 and 5 Due after

months months years 5 years Total
KShs*000¢ KShs‘000  KShs‘006 KShs“000 KShs<000
1,104,666 - - - 1,104,666
1,518,722 - - - 1,518,722
1,357,071 309,961 2,976,442 4,198,410 8,841,884
- - 20,531 - 20,531
3,980,459 309,961 2,996,973 4,198,410 11,485,803
9,146,710 1,002,613 - - 10,149,323
201,361 - - 201,361
C- 24918 40,985 - 65,903
9.348,071  1,027.531 40,985 - 10,416,587
(5,374,296) (721,358) 2,886,232 4,183,372 973,950

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as profit rate, equity prices, forei on
exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s / issuer’s credit
standing) will affect the Bank’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures

within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

Overall authority for market risk is vested in ALCO. Risk management is responsible for the
development of detailed risk management policies (subject to review and approval by ALCO)
and for the day-to-day review of their implementation. The Bank is primarily exposed to
currency risk. Due to the nature of the Bank’s current products, the exposure to any other

market risk is minimal.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Bank is exposed to currency rigk through iransactions in foreign cwrencies. The Bank’s
transactional exposures give rise to foreign currency gains and losses that are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income. In respect of monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies, the Bank ensures that its net exposure 1s kept to an acceptable Jevel by
buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates when considered appropriate. The table
below summarises the foreign currency exposure as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December

2020:
2021
KShs*000
Assets in foreign currencies 4,386,986
Liabilities in foretgn currencies (4,365.953)
Net foreign currency exposure 21433

2020
KShs 600

2,061,288
(2.074.016)

(12.728)
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2028 (CONTINUED)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()

(e)

®

Carrency risk (confinned)

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the vear.

Closing Average
Currency 2021 2024 2021 2020
Usb 113.14 109.17 109.65 106.47
GBP 152.05 148.36 150.85 136.73
EUR 127.99 133.90 129.76 121.65
AED 30.80 29.72 29.85 28.99
ZAR 7.11 7.46 7.42 6.51

Settlement risk -

The Bank’s activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions and trades.
Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a Bank to honour its obligations to
deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractnally agreed.

For certain types of transactions, the Bank mitigates this risk by conducting settlements
through a settlement/clearing agent to ensure that a trade is seftled only when both parties
have fulfilied their contractual settlement obligations.

Settlement limits form part of the credit approval/limit monitoring process described earlier.
Acceptance of seftlement risk on free seitiement trades requires transaction specific or
counierparty specific approvals from Risk.

Capital management

The Bank’s objective when managing capital (regulatory capital) is to comply with the capital
requirements as set out by the Central Bank of Kenya and safeguard the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern as well as maintaining a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Under the regulatory environment, the Central Bank of Kenya requires every financial
institution to:

(2) Maintain a minimum capital of Shs 1,000 miltion (2020 — Shs 1,000 million).

(b} Maintain a core capital of not less than §% (2020 — 8%) of total deposit liabilities.

{c) Maintain 2 minimum core capital to risk weighted assets including off-balance sheet
assets of 10.5% (2020 — 10.5%) and

(d} Maintain a ratio of total capital to risk weighted assets including off-balance sheet assets
of not less than 14.5% (2020 - 14.5%),

The Bank is compliant with all the above requirements.
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5.

DIB BANK KENVA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()

{apital management (continued)

The Bank calculates capital adequacy ratios for credit risk, market risk and operational risk
based upon Basel requirements and the prudential guidelines as issued by the Central Bank
of Kenya.

Capital adequacy and use of regulatory capital are monitored regularly by management
employing {echniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Commitice, as
imsplemented by the Central Baunk of Kenya for supervisory purposes.

Credit risk weights are measured by means of a hierarchy of four risk weights classified
according fo the nature of (and reflecting an estimate of the credit risk associated with) each
asset and counterparty. This treatment is also adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with
some adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses.

Operational risk weighted assets 1s computed using the basic indicator approach which is
based on the average gross revenne over the prior 3 year period.

Market risk weighted assets 1s computed using a standardised approach based on the foreign
exchange exposure as at 31 December each year. The Bank’s regulatory capital is analysed
into two tiers:

— Core capital (Tier 1), which includes ordinary share capital, share premium, and retained
earnings.

— Supplementary capital (Tier 2), which includes statutory credit risk reserve and any other
approved reserves.

The Bank’s regulatory capital position at 31 December was as follows:

2021 2029

Core capita] (Tier 1) KShs*000 KShs 000
Paid up share capital 6,650,439 5,839,614
Retained carnings (2,992,857) (2,533,974)
Net afier tax losses (_494.229) {__501,965)
_3.163.353 _ 2,803,675

Deferred tax {1.370,601) (1.183.711)
Core capital 1.792.752 1.619.964
Supplementary capital (Tier 2) - 43,082
Total capital 1.792.752 1,663,046
On balance sheet risk weighted assets 10,114,296 9,252,537
Off balance sheet risk weighted assets 1.264.212 1,035,735
Total risk weighted assets 11.378.508 19,291,272
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAY, STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()

(g)

Capital management (continued)

Capital adequacy ratios 2021 2020
Percentage of Core Capital to Risk Weighted Asset ratio 15.8% 15.7%
Minimum requirement 10.5% 10.5%
Percentage of Total Capital to Risk Weighted Asset ratio 15.8% 16.2%
Minimum requirement 14.5% 14.5%
Percentage of Core Capital to Deposits ratio 15.0% 16.0%
Minirum requirement 8.0% 8.0%
Capital allocation

The allocation of capital between specific aperations and activities 1s, to a large extent, driven
by optimisation of the return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of capital
aljocated to each operation or activity is based primarily upon the regulatory capital, but in
some cages the regulatory requirements do not reflect fully the varying degree of risk
associated with different activities. In such cases the capital requirements may be flexed to
reflect differing risk profiles, subject to the overall level of capital to support a particular
operation or activity not falling below the minimum required for regulatory purposes. The
process of allocating capital to specific operations and activities is undertaken independently
of those responsibie for the operation, by Risk Management Committee and is subject fo
review by the Credit Committee or Assets and Liability Management Commitiee as
appropriate.

Although maximisation of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis used in
determining how capital is allocated within the Bank to particular operations or activities, it
1s not the sole basis used for decision making. Account also 1s taken of synergies with other
operations and activities, the availability of management and other resources, and the fit of
the activity with the Bank’s longer term strategic objectives. The Bank’s policies in respect
of capital management and allocation are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.

Financial assets and liabilities and their fair values

The table below sets out the Bank’s classification of each class of financial assets and
habilities, and thetr fair values:

Total
Amortised carrying
31 December 2621 cost amount Fair value

KShs‘000 KShs 000 KShs*d00

Cash and balances with Central Bank 1,531,751 1,531,751 1,531,751
Balances due from banking mnstitutions 2,091,810 2,091,810 2,091,810
Financing arrangements 9,713,511 9,713,511 9,713,511
Other assets 19,873 19,873 19,873
Total financial assets 13,356,945 13,356,945 13,356,945

Page 65




5.

BiB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(g)

Financial assets and liabilities and their fair valnes (continued)

Total

Amoriised carrying
3¥ December 2021 _ cost amount Fair valoe
KShs*000 KShs000 KShs 000
Customer deposits 11,925,689 11,925,689 11,925,689
Other Habilities 151,329 151,328 151,329
Lease liabilities 282,341 282,341 282,341
Total financial liabilities 12,359,359 12,359,359 12,359,359

Total

Amortised carrying
31 December 2020 cost amount Fair value
KShs000 KShs 600 KShs“000
Cash and balances with Central Bank 1,104,666 1,104,666 1,104,666
Balances due from banking institutions 1,518,722 1,518,722 1,518,722
Financing arrangements 8,746,618 8,746,618 8,746,618
Other assets 20,531 20,531 20,531
Total financial assets 11,390,537 11,390,537 11,390,537

Total

Amortised carrying
31 December 2020 cost amount Fair value
KShs‘004 KShs 000 KShs 000
Customer deposits 10,149,323 10,149,323 10,149,323
Other liabitities 201,361 201,361 201,361
Lease liabilities 65,903 65,903 65,903
Total financial labilities 13,416,587 10,416,587 10,416,587

The fair value of the Bank’s financing arangements and customoer deposits approximate their
carrying amounts as the financial assets are repriced annually in line with the Central Bank
of Kenya rates which represenis the market rate.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

INCOME FROM FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2021 2020
KShs‘008 KShs008
Income from financing arrangements 1,079,091 688,645
Incotme from invesiing assels - placements 3,751 29716
10826842 718,361
DEPOSITORS SHARE OF PROFIT
Time Deposits 669,732 481,325
Savings Deposits 5,801 5,313
Interbank Deposits 8.084 16.651
083,747 503.289
(a) FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME
Credit related fees and commissions 14,291 20,419
Foreign exchange income 62,582 77,7125
Other fees 18,375 15.164
95,248 22.3

Gains on foreign currency dealings arose from trading in foreign currency transactions and also on
the translation of foreign currency assets and liabilities.

{b) OTHER (EXPENSESY INCOME 2021 2020
KShs 080 KShs 000
Loss on disposal of asset ( 9473 -
Other income 370 166
{(__9.103) 166

{a) PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Salaries and allowances 323,590 332,092
Other staff cost 86,176 75,710
Directors emohiments — Executive 21.992 21,960
431,758 429,762

The number of persons employed by the Bank as at the year-end was 121 (2020 — 122). These are
as follows:

Average number of employees 2021 2028
Senior management 14 i4
Junior management and supervisors 46 38
Other staff ‘ : 61 70
121 122
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

(b) CTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Insurance expenses

Legal and professional fees

Directors’ emoluments — Non executive
Other expenses

TAXATION

(2)

(b

(o)

Taxation credit

Current taxation based on the taxable profit
for the period at 30% (2020 — 25%)
Deferred taxation (credit) (Note 19):

- current year credit

- prior year over provision

Reconciliation of taxation credit to the
expected taxation based on profit before taxation

Loss before tax

Tax at the applicable rate of 30% (2020 —~ 25%)
Effect of expenses disallowed for tax purposes
Effect of tax rate changes

Prior year over provision

Taxation credit
Loss before {ax
Loss before tax 1s armived at after charging

Depreciation expense on property and
equipment {Note 16)
Deprecation on right use asset (Note 17 (a))
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18)
Directors” emoluments ~ Non executive

- executive (Note 27)
Anuditor’s remuneration

2021
KShst006

6,199
11,446
9,350
312,055

339,050

(186,890)

(186.890)

(681.119)

(204,336)
17,446

(186.890)

63,294
73,230
72,268
9,350
21,992
5.109

2020
KShs 000

6,295
31,516
8,800
270.770

317,381

(192,592)
1.843

(120.749)

(692.714)

(173,178)
12,685
(32,099)
1.843

190,749

75,902
88,063
69,318
8,800
21,960
4,800
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 {CONTINUED)

CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK OF KENYA

2021 2620

KShs 000 KShs'006

Cash on hand 158,352 135,288
Balances with Central Bank of Kenya (CBK)

- Restricted balances (cash reserve ratio) 206,353 379,076

- Unrestricted balances with CBK 1.077.046 590,302

1,.373.399 969,378

1.531.751 1.104.666

The cash reserve ratio requirement is based on the customer deposits with the bank as adjusted by
the Central Bank of Kenya requirements. As at 31 December 2021 the cash reserve ratio
requirement was 4.25% (2020 — 4.25%) of all customer deposits. These funds are however
available for use by the Bank in its day-to-day operations in a limited way provided that on any
given day this balance does not fali below 3% of the requirement and provided that the overall
average in the month 1s at least 5.25% (2020 — 4.25%).

DEPGSITS AND BALANCES DUE FROM BANKING INSTITUTIONS

2021 2020

KShs 000 KShs 000

Placements with other banks 226,897 1,080,302
Deposits and other balances with banks 1,864,913 438,420
091,81 18,722

The weighied average effective profit rate for deposits and placements with other banks at 31
December 2021 was 2.50% (2020 - 6.41%). All the above balances have maturities of less than 90
days from the date of acquisition.

FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS 2021 2020
KShs‘060 KShs“000
Classification
Murabaha 4,476,119 3,767,930
Harah 5,488,761 5,073,954
Gross financing arrangements 9.964.850 8.641.884
Impainment provisions (_251.369) (___95.266)
Net financing arrangements 9.713.511 8.746.618
Repayable within:
Less than 3 months 1,389,318 1,357,071
3 months to | year 285,098 309,962
1 to 5 years 3,609,194 2,976,441
Over 5 years 4,671,270 4,198410
9,964,880 £.841.884
Page 6
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16.

DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2021 2620
{a) Impairment losses on financing arrangements KShs'000 KShs 000
Nei re-measurement of loss allowance 135,113 15,768
Net financing arrangements originated 25,160 45,526
Financing arrangements derecognised {__2.344) {26,389
Charge for the year 157.929 34.905
(b) Total impairment losses on financing arrangements are classified are as follows:
2021 2020
KShs‘000 KShs“000
Impairment losses on Murabaha 177,112 71,863
bmpairment losses on [jarah 74,257 23,403
Impairment losses on off-balance sheet commitments 1.826 688
253.195 95,954
OTHER ASSETS
Prepayments 102,580 118,340
Deposit 19.873 20.531
122,453 138,871
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
, Equipment -
Leasehold furniture Motor
imprevements and fitfings vehicles Total
2021: KShs*000 KShs000 KShs000 K Shs 000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 271,151 353,808 6,734 631,693
Additions 8,168 14,880 - 23,048
Disposal (39,177) { 5,858) - {45,035)
At 31 December 2021 240,142 362,830 6,734 609,706
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 173,767 310,868 6,734 491,369
Charge for the year 44 627 18,667 - 63,294
Disposal (29,192) { 5,170) (34,362}
At 31 December 2021 189,202 324,365 0,734 520,301
Net book value
At 31 December 2021 50,940 38,465 - 89.405
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BIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Centinued)

Equipment
Lezasehold furniture Maoter

improvements and fittngs Vehicles Total
2420: KShs 000 KShs'000 KShs 400 KShs 060
Cast
At 1 January 2020 270,899 335,308 6,734 612,941
Additions 252 15,500 - 18,752
At 31 December 2020 271,151 353,808 6,734 631,693
Depreciation
At 1 January 2020 128,572 280,443 6,452 415,467
Charge for the year 45,195 30,425 282 75,902
At 31 December 2020 173,767 310,868 6,734 491,369
Net book value
At 3% December 2020 97,384 42,940 - 140,324

Included in the property and equipment are assets with a cost value of KShs 587,676,676 which
were fully depreciated as at 31 December 2021 (2020 — 189,081,642). The nofional depreciation
for the fully depreciated assets was KShs 107,277,276 (2020 — 61,822,368). This amount excludes
motor vehicles which are also fully depreciated.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

The Bank leases office space for its use. Information about the leases in which the Bank is a lessee
is presented below:

2021 2020
KShs 000 KShs‘000
(a) Right of Use Asset
Balance as at 1 January 64,223 149,763
Additions 270,688 2,523
Amortization charge for the year (_73.230) (_88.063)
Balance as at 31 December 201,681 64223
(b) Amount recognised in the profit or loss
Interest on lease liabilities 28,870 14,929
Amortization charge for the year 73.230 885.063
102,100 102,992

The smaturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in Note 21.
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DIB BANK KFENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2620 (CONTINUED)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (Continued)

{c} Amounts recognised in cash flows 2023

KShs 000
Payment of principal lease Habilities 54,250
Interest paid on lease Labilities 28.870

At the end of the year

312

2020
KShs 600

89,711
14,929

184.640

At 31 December 2021, the Bank is comumiited to KShs Nil (2020 — KShs Nil) for short-term leases
All of the property leases in which the Bank is the lessee contain only fixed payments. The total

cash outflow for leases amount to K.Shs 83.1 million (2020 ~ KShs 104.6 million).

There are no extension or termination options on the leases, There are no restrictions or covenants
imposed by leases and the Bank did not enter into any sale and leaseback transactions during the

year (2020 — KShs Nil).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - COMPUTER SOFTWARE

2021:

Cost
At 1 January 2021
Additions

At 31 December 2021

Amortisation
At 1 January 2021
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2021

Net book value
At 31 December 2021

202¢:

Cost
At 1 January 2020
Additions

At 31 December 2020

Amortisation
At I Jammary 2020
Charge for the vear

At 31 December 2020

Net book value
At 31 December 2020

Intangible
assets
KShs‘000

598,446
47.558

646,004
232,237
72,268

304,505

241,499

565,238
33,208

598.446

162,919
69.318

232237
366,209

Page 72
A




19,

DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED TAXATION 2021 : 2020
KShs 000 KShs 060

The deferred tax asset, computed at the enacted rate
of 30%, is attributable to the following items:

Accelerated capiial aliowances 32,168 63,015
Provisions for impairment (  90,044) ( 52,187)
Tax losses (1.312.725) (1.194.539)
(1,370,601} (1L183.711)
The movement on the deferred tax asset account is as follows:
As at 1 Jammary { 1,183,711) { 992,962)
Credit for the year { 186,890) { 192,592)
Prior year over provision - 1.843
At 31 December (1.370.601) (L183.711)

The Bank has operated for 4 year and 7 months as at 31 December 2021 and during this time, it has
distinguished itself through delivery of value to its clients. The Bank is also offering its clients
competitive financing rates in foreign currency and flexible repayment period in a bid to grow its
business. These strategies are expected to translate into increased revenue as well as operational
synergies that will result in improved profitability for the Bank. The management forecasts that
these strategies will begin to bear fruit and derive profitability in the near future. Additionally, the
curzent tax laws, aliows an institution io use tax credifs against future tax liabilities in perpetuity.
On the foregoing, the management considers it prudent io recognise the deferred tax asset of K.Shs
1,370,601,000 in its bajance heet.

The ageing of tax Josses for the Bank 1s as follows:

Amount in
Year of origin KShs ‘000
2015 441,449
2016 689,856
2017 805,443
2018 799,730
2019 718,128
2020 527,190
2021 — 393 654
[Total 4,375,750
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUER)

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 2021 2020

KShs ‘080 K&hs <000
Time deposits 9,370,975 6,979,240
Carrent accounts deposits 2,382,165 2,962,042
Savings accounts deposits 172,549 208,041

11,925,689 10.149.323
LEASE LIABILITIES
Amounts due for setilement within 12 months 45,610 7 24918
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 236,731 40,985

282,341 092903

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on undiscounted cash flows are as follows:

Year 1 74,702 20,819
Year 2 79,982 15,712
Year 3 77,804 16,889
Year 4 72,725 11,166
Year 5 44,596 1.457
349.509 12,043
OTHER LIABILITIES
Accruals 43,599 67,749
Due to relaied parties (Noie 27) 3,195 -
Deferred fee income 52,564 37,873
Other payables 51,970 95,739
151,328 201.361
SHARE CAPITAL

{a) Authorised, issned and fully paid:

At 1 Tanuary 2021 : 5,839,614 (2020 - 4,499,869)

ordinary shares of KShs 1,000 each 5,839,614 4,499 869
Issue of shares during the year 810,825
(2020 — 1,339,745) ordinary shares at KShs 1000 810.825 1,339.745

At 31 December 2021: 6,650,439 (2020 — 5,839,614)
ordinary shares of KShe 1,000 each 6.6500439 5.839.614

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitied to one vote per share at meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank egually
with regard to the Bank’s residual assets.
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DIBE BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
(b} Statufory credit risk reserve

Tlis represents an amount set aside to cover additional provisions for credit losses required
to comply with the requirements of Central Bank of Kenya Prudential Guidelines. The
amount is not available for distribution. The reserve balance as at 31 December 2021 was
K&hs Nil {2020 - K Shs 43,082,000).

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(2) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated frem operations

2021 2620
K.Shs‘000 KShs 000
Loss before taxation { 681,119 ( 692,714)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 16) 63,294 75,902
Loss on dispesal of property and equipment (Note 16) 9,473 -
Amortization of right of use asset (Note 17(a)) 73,230 88,063
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 18) 72,268 69,318
Interest on lease Habilities ( Note 17(c)) 28.870 14,929
( 433,934) ( 444,502)
Changes in:
Balances held by
Central Bank of Kenya under lien 82,723 { 97,078)
Financing arrangements { 966,893) (3,681,449
Other assets 16,418 _ { 15,044)
Customer deposits 1,776,366 4037776
Balances due to banking institutions - ( 400,359)
Other liabilities {50,033 (_112,58%)
Cash used in operations 424 597 713.239
(b)  Anatlysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
as shown in the firancial position and notes
Cash on hand (Note 11) 158,352 135,288
Deposits and balances due from
banking institutions (Note 12) 2,091,810 1,518,722
Current account with
Central Bank of Kenya (Note 11) 1.077.046 590,302
3.327.208 2,244 312

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include short term liguid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which were within
three months of maturity when acquired.
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DIB BANK KENYA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

CHARITABLE WELFARE FUND 2021 2020
KShs‘000 KShs‘000
As at January and December 1.651 F.438

Transfers fo charitable welfare fund represents income deemed to be non-Shari’ah compliant either
because it is from a non-Shari’ah compliant source or the underlying transactions had been found
to be in breach of Shari’ah principles. The transfers as above have been presented within other
irabilities.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
INCLUDING OFF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

2021 2020
KShs“006 KShs*000

{a) Contingent liabilities
Letters of credit 53,738 56,481
Guarantees 671,705 726,398
Bills of collections 148,344 84.049
873,787 £66,928

The contingent liabilities are commitments by the Bank to make payments to third parties,
on production of documents, on behalf of customers and are reimbursable by customers.

(b) The Bank is committed to incur a capital expenditure of KShs 422,778,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020 - KShs 506,720,000).

{¢) Commitments to extend credit

Commitments to enter into financial agreements to finance a customer in future subject to
certain conditions. Such commitments are normally made for a fixed period. The bank may
withdraw without incurring any charges from its contractual obligation io extend credit by
giving reasonable notice to the customer.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Placements at 31 December 2021 include placements made in the Bank by Directors, their
associates and companies associated to Directors. Advances to customers and deposits at 31
December 2021 include financing facilities and advances to companies associated to Directors
employees of the bank and, also deposgits held with related parties respectively.
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DIB BANK KENYA DIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Confinued)

Directors’
agseciated companies Emplovees/staff
2821 2626 2023 2028

KShs000 KShs‘0060 KShs006 KShs‘000
Movement in related party balances was as

follows:

Deposits:

At 1 Januvary 65,320 49,499 7,492 12,878

Net movement dwring the year 2,044 15,821 8,336 (5,386)

At 31 December 67,364 65,320 15,828 7.492

2021 2020

KShs009 KShs*000

Transactions with related parfies

Dubai Islamic Bank PISC 3,195 -

The related parties’ transactions with Dubai Islamic Bank PISC relate to reimbursement of travel
expenses incurred by DIB Kenya Limited and paid for by the parent Bank.

Key management compensation

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year were as
follows:

2021 2020

KShs 000 KShs 000

Key management 84,216 89,069
Executive director 21,992 21,960
Other directors 9.350 §.800

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined by the Board of Directors having
regard to the performance of the individuals and market trends.

FIDUCIARY ACTIVITIES

At 31 December 2021, the Bank did not hold any asset security documents on behalf of customers
(2020 - Nil).

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION

The Bank is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act and domiciled in Kenya. The
holding Bark is Dubai Islamic Bank PJSC which is incorporated in United Arab Emirates.
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DIB BANK KENVYA LIMITED

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

20, EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events after the reporting period which require to be adjusted or reported
in these financial statements.
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